

細み夢 RURAL HOUSING & MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY

To ensure compliance with legal requirements and set standards for Corporate Governance so that concerned officers act in accordance with the highest standards of governance while working for and on behalf of the Company.

Prepared by Approved by Policy Owner Version No. : Darshil Hiranandani

: Board of Directors

: Secretarial Department

: 2.0

This document is confidential in nature and supersedes any Policy on Corporate Governance existing in the Company, and should be read in conjunction with the most recent policies and procedures documented.

Subject: Corporate Governance Policy			
Revision Dates: As and when required		Version No.: 2.0	
Base Document	:	Housing Finance Companies – Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 issued by National Housing Bank vide Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG- DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated 9 February 2017 and Companies Act, 2013.	
		Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021	
Initial Document Prepared by	:	Mr. Darshil Hiranandani	
Functional Aspects checked by	:	Mrs. Darshana Pandya and Mr. Chintan Pandya	
Governing Guideline/ Policy		Housing Finance Companies – Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 issued by National Housing Bank vide Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG- DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated 9 February 2017 and Companies Act, 2013. Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021	

Corporate Governance Policy

Contents:

1.	Preamble
2.	Context and Purpose
3.	Definitions
4.	Guidelines on Corporate Governance
5.	Board of Directors
6.	Board Committees
Α.	Audit Committee
В.	Risk Management Committee
C.	Nomination & Remuneration Committee
D.	Asset Liability Management Committee
7.	Fit and Proper Criteria for Directors
8.	Disclosure to the Board
9.	Rotation of Statutory Auditors / Audit Partner(s)
10.	Review of Policy

1. Preamble

#LAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited (hereinafter 'the Company/#LAS') believes that a good corporate governance system is necessary to ensure its long term success. The Company ensures good governance through the implementation of various effective policies and procedures, which is mandated and reviewed by the Board or the Committees of the members of the Board in regular intervals.

The objective of the Corporate Governance Policy ('Policy') is to ensure compliance with legal requirements and set standards for Corporate Governance so that concerned officers act in accordance with the highest standards of governance while working for and on behalf of the Company and also to elaborate on the provisions of applicable law governing information for shareholders. All the concerned are expected to read and understand these guidelines to uphold these standards in day-to-day activities and comply with all applicable policies and procedures.

The purpose of this policy is to frame internal guidelines on Corporate Governance. This policy shall lay down the detailed procedures for the implementation of the said guidelines in order to comply with the directions issued by the National Housing Bank ("NHB") in this regard.

2. Context and Purpose

This Policy on Corporate Governance ("Policy") draws reference to the Housing Finance Companies – Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 issued by NHB vide Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated 9 February 2017 ('NHB Direction'), including any amendment, revision in the directions made thereunder and issuance of any guidelines, notification, circular by the NHB in this regard from time to time read with Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021 ('RBI Directions') including any amendment, revision in the directions made thereunder and issuance of any guidelines, notification february 17, 2021 ('RBI Directions') including any amendment, revision in the directions made thereunder and issuance of any guidelines, notification, circular by the RBI in this regard from time to time.

As per the NHB / RBI Directions, non-public deposit accepting Housing Finance Company (HFC) with assets size of Rs. 50 crores and above, as per the last audited balance sheet, and all public deposit accepting / holding Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) shall frame internal guidelines on corporate governance with the approval of the Board of Directors, enhancing the scope of the guidelines without sacrificing the spirit underlying the NHB Directions and it shall be published on the company's website, if any, for the information of various stakeholders. \mathfrak{MAS}' ("Company") being a non-public deposit accepting HFC, is accordingly covered by the NHB Directions.

This Policy is to be read in conjunction with applicable laws; accordingly, this Policy enhances the provisions of applicable laws.

3. Definitions

In this Policy, unless the context otherwise requires:

- a) "Applicable Laws" means the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, Housing Finance Companies – Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 issued by National Housing Bank vide Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated 9 February 2017 read with Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021 ('RBI Directions'), applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India from time to time and includes any other statute, law, standards, regulations or other governmental instruction relating to Corporate Governance Direction;
- b) "Audit Committee" means the Audit Committee formed under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013;
- c) "Board of Directors" or "Board" means the collective body of the directors of the Company;
- "Chief Financial Officer" means chief financial officer as defined in Section 2(19) of Companies Act, 2013 or any modification or re-enactment made thereunder for the time being in force;
- e) "Company" means AAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited (A Public Limited);
- f) "Committees" means committees of Board of Directors constituted by virtue of NHB Directions or other Applicable Laws;
- g) "Companies Act, 2013" includes any statutory modification(s), enactment(s) or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force;
- h) "Company Secretary" means a company secretary as defined in Section 2(24) of Companies Act, 2013 or any modification or re-enactment made thereunder for the time being in force;
- "Corporate Governance" means a set of relationships between the Company's management, its Board, its shareholders and other stakeholders which provide the structure through which the objectives of the Company are set, and the means of attaining those objectives and monitoring performance. It helps to define the way authority is allocated and the way corporate decisions are arrived at and executed;
- j) "Directions" means Housing Finance Companies Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 issued by National Housing Bank vide Notification

No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated 9 February 2017 read with Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021 ('RBI Directions') and shall include any amendment thereto;

- k) "Director" means a director appointed to the Board of the Company;
- "Independent Director" means an independent director defined in Section 2(47) of Companies Act, 2013 or any modification or re-enactment made thereunder for the time being in force;
- m) "Nomination Committee" means the Nomination & Remuneration Committee ("NRC") formed under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013;
- n) "Risk Management" means the process established to ensure that all material risks and associated risk concentrations are identified, measured, limited, controlled, mitigated and reported on a timely and comprehensive basis;
- o) "Risk Management Committee" means the committee constituted as per the NHB Directions set forth by the National Housing Bank in this regard and any other existing committee shall be reconstituted in line with the NHB Directions;
- p) "Senior Management" shall mean personnel of the Company have been defined in Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 as personnel of the company who are members of its core management team excluding the Board of Directors. This would also include all members of management one level below the executive directors including all functional heads.

4. Guidelines on Corporate Governance

In pursuance of the direction issued by the NHB, the Company has framed the following internal guidelines on Corporate Governance.

5. Board of Directors

The Board shall be responsible for exercising its business judgments to act in what it reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The Board of Directors along with its constituted Committees shall provide direction and guidance for the Company and shall further supervise and review the performance of the Company.

As the Directors occupy fiduciary position, they shall attend and actively participate in Board and its Committee meetings thereof, on which they serve, and shall properly, discharge their responsibilities. Board of Directors focuses its activity on the determination, supervision, and monitoring of the strategies and general guidelines that must be followed by the Company, and entrusts to the representative management decision making bodies and to the senior officers the dissemination, coordination, and acting in furtherance of the interests of each and every one of the companies forming part thereof.

The Board shall ensure that the Company's organizational structure enables the Board and Senior Management to carry out their responsibilities and facilitates effective decisionmaking and good governance. This includes clearly laying out the key responsibilities and authorities of the Board itself, of Senior Management and of those responsible for the control functions.

In Compliance with Section 165 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), a director shall not hold the office of a director in more than 20 companies. Provided that the maximum number of public companies in which a person can be appointed as a director shall not exceed 10.

The Board shall review this Policy periodically so that it remains appropriate in the light of material changes in regulatory requirement with respect to the Company's size, complexity, geographic reach, business strategy, market and best governance practices.

A. Corporate Culture and Values

In order to promote a sound corporate culture and values, the Board shall ensure the following:

- 1. setting and adhering to corporate values for itself, Senior Management and other employees that create expectations that all business should be conducted in a legal and ethical manner;
- promoting risk awareness within a strong risk culture, conveying the Board's expectation that it does not support excessive risk-taking and that all employees are responsible for helping ensure that the Company operates within the agreed risk appetite and risk limits;
- 3. ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to communicate throughout the Company the corporate values, professional standards or Code of Conduct it sets, together with supporting policies;
- 4. employees should be encouraged and able to communicate, confidentially and without the risk of victimization, legitimate concerns about illegal, unethical or questionable practices.

B. Oversight of Senior Management

The Board should oversee the Senior Management. It should hold members of Senior Management accountable for their actions and enumerate the consequences if those actions are not aligned with the Board's performance expectations. This includes adhering to the Company's values, risk appetite and risk culture, regardless of financial gain or loss to the Company. In doing so, the Board should:

- 1. monitor that Senior Management's actions are consistent with the strategies and policies approved by the Board;
- 2. meet regularly with Senior Management;
- 3. interrogate and critically review reply and information provided by Senior Management;
- 4. ensure that Senior Management's knowledge and expertise remain appropriate given the nature of the business and the Company's risk profile;
- 5. ensure that appropriate succession plans are in place for Senior Management positions.

C. Size of the Board

The Board's strength shall be minimum 3 (three) and not more than 15 (fifteen). However, the Company may appoint more than 15 Directors after passing a Special Resolution.

D. Board Composition

The Board shall have an optimum combination of executive, non-executive and Independent Directors in line with the requirements of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other Applicable Laws and the Articles of Association of the Company.

E. Board Meetings and Quorum

The Board Meetings of the Company shall be held as per the requirements prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and other Applicable Laws and as decided by the Board of Directors. The dates of the meetings shall be fixed well in advance. The quorum shall be as per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and other Applicable Laws.

F. Information to be placed before Board and its Committees

To enable the Board members to discharge their responsibilities effectively and take informed decisions, detailed agenda papers, with explanations on each item, shall be sent to each Director well in advance of the Board and its Committee meetings as per Companies Act, 2013 and other Applicable Laws. All the items on the agenda shall be discussed in detail, during the Board and its Committee meetings. The Board members shall have complete access to any information, within the Company. At the meetings, the Board members shall be provided with all the relevant information on important matters affecting

the working of the Company as well as the related details that require deliberation by the members of the Board.

G. Agenda for the Meeting

The agenda for the Board and its Committee meetings shall be sent to the Board members and the Committee members respectively within a reasonable period of time prior to the Meeting as per Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and other Applicable Laws.

Each Board member and Committee member as the case may be is free to suggest inclusion of items in the agenda. With the permission of the Chair, each Board member and Committee member as the case may be is free to raise any matter(s) that is/are not on the agenda of the Board and the Committee Meeting respectively and any other matter can be placed for discussion unless there are any regulatory restrictions. However, with reference to any sensitive matter on the agenda, relevant information can be made available only at the time of the Board Meeting or the Committee meeting as the case may be.

H. Attendance at Board Meetings

The Directors shall strive to attend all meetings of the Board and its Committees where they are members. In case a Director is unable to attend specific Board Meeting or its Committees where they are members, he or she shall obtain leave of absence from the Board or the Committee as the case may be.

I. Minutes

The minutes of all meetings of the Board and the Committees shall be circulated to the Board and the Committee respectively and shall be noted in the consequent Board Meeting and Committee meeting respectively as per Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and other Applicable Laws. Minutes of meetings of Committees of Board shall be placed before the Board.

6. Board Committees

In order to focus on the critical functions of the Company, the Board may constitute such Committees as and when required to ensure smooth functioning of the Company. The Board shall have the following Committees mandatorily:

- Audit Committee
- Risk Management Committee
- Nomination & Remuneration Committee
- Corporate Governance Committee
- Asset Liability Management Committee

The terms of reference of the above mentioned Committees shall be determined by the Board from time to time as per Companies Act, 2013 and other Applicable Laws.

Details of the various Board Committees are as under:

A. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee constitution and functioning shall be in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other Applicable laws. The powers, functions, duties and terms of reference of the Audit Committee shall be comprehensive and include the requirements as set out by Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee will be vested with necessary powers, as defined in its terms of reference to achieve its objectives.

Composition:

The Audit Committee of the Company shall have minimum of three Directors with Independent Directors forming a majority. Further, majority of members of the Audit Committee including its Chairperson shall be persons with ability to read and understand, the financial statements.

The chairman of the Committee shall attend the Annual General Meeting to answer shareholder queries.

The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as secretary to the Audit Committee.

The members of the Audit Committee shall meet all applicable legal requirements with respect to independence, financial literacy, accounting or related financial expertise, etc. as required by Companies Act, 2013 and other Applicable Laws. The members of the Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee may invite such of the executives, as it considers appropriate to be present at the meetings of the Audit Committee, but on occasions it may also meet without the presence of any executives of the Company. Chief Financial Officer, head of internal audit and a representative of the statutory auditor may be present as invitees for the meetings of the Audit Committee.

Meetings and Quorum:

The Audit Committee should meet atleast four times a year and not more than four months shall elapse between two meetings.

Quorum shall comprise of two members or one third of the total members of the Audit Committee whichever is higher. The Audit Committee Meeting shall be attended by;

- Members of the Audit Committee
- Chief Financial Officer as and when invited
- Head Internal Audit as and when invited
- Internal Auditors as and when invited
- Statutory Auditors as and when invited
- Such other invitees at the discretion of the Chairman of the Committee
- Company Secretary, who shall act as the secretary to the Committee

Minutes:

The Company Secretary will maintain minutes of the meetings of the Audit Committee as per the Applicable laws.

Role of the Committee:

The Audit Committee shall undertake such duties as per the Charter/Terms of Reference approved by the Board and any such duties as may be delegated to it from time to time.

B. Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee will be constituted of Board of Directors to manage the integrated risks of the Company.

The Risk Management Committee shall identify, review and control key risk areas, across the entire organization. The Risk Management Committee shall review and monitor viz; credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, regulatory risk and reputational risks. The Risk Management Committee shall be vested with necessary powers, as defined in its charter/Terms of Reference to achieve its objectives.

Composition:

The constitution and functioning of Risk Management Committee shall be in line with the requirements of the NHB Directions.

The Risk Management Committee shall have minimum of three Directors. The members of the Committee will be appointed by the Board of Directors.

The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as the secretary to the Risk Management Committee.

Meetings and Quorum:

The Risk Management Committee shall meet on need basis.

The quorum of Risk Management Committee shall comprise any two members of the Committee.

Minutes

The Company Secretary will maintain minutes of the meetings of the Risk Management Committee as per Applicable Laws.

Role of the Committee:

The Risk Management Committee shall undertake all such duties as decided and delegated by the Board of Directors to it from time to time.

C. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee ('NRC') constitution and functioning shall be in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other Applicable laws. The powers, functions, duties and terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be comprehensive and include the requirements as set out by Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will be vested with necessary powers, as defined in its terms of reference to achieve its objectives.

Composition:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board shall have atleast three nonexecutive Directors out of which not less than one half shall be Independent Directors.

The chairperson of the Company whether executive or non-executive may be appointed as member of NRC but shall not act as the chairman of the NRC.

The chairman of the NRC if required shall attend the Annual General Meeting of the Company to answer the shareholders' queries. However, it would be up to the chairman of the NRC to decide who should answer the queries.

Meetings and Quorum:

The NRC shall meet on need basis.

Quorum shall comprise of two members or one third of the total members of the NRC, whichever is higher.

Minutes:

The Company Secretary will maintain the minutes of the meeting of the NRC as per Applicable Laws.

Role of Committee:

The NRC shall undertake the duties as per the Terms of Reference approved by the Board and any other duties as may be delegated to it from time to time.

The NRC shall also ensure fit and proper criteria as required by the NHB Direction issued by the National Housing Bank including any amendment thereof.

D. Asset Liability Management Committee

The Board shall also constitute an Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) as required by the Directions.

The constitution and functioning of the ALCO shall be in line with the requirements of the Directions.

The Committee inter alia, shall monitor the asset liability gap and strategize action to mitigate the risk associated. The Committee shall mainly address liquidity and interest rate risk.

Composition:

The ALCO Committee shall have minimum of three members. The members of the Committee will be appointed by the Board of Directors.

Meetings and Quorum:

The ALCO shall meet as and when required.

The quorum of ALCO meetings shall comprise of at least two members of the Committee.

Minutes:

The minutes of the meetings of ALCO shall be maintained by the Company Secretary as per Applicable Law.

Role of the Committee:

The Committee shall undertake such duties as per the terms of reference approved by the Board and such other duties as may be delegated to it from time to time.

Apart from the above committees, the Board shall constitute such other Committees as may be deemed fit by it, if required.

7. Fit and Proper Criteria for Directors

The Company shall have a policy put in place for ascertaining the 'fit and proper' criteria at the time of appointment of Directors and on a continuing basis. The NRC shall review the appointment/re-appointment of Directors considering their qualifications, expertise, track record, integrity and other 'fit and proper' criteria. The NRC should obtain such declarations/undertakings, deed of covenant from the Directors and ensure furnishing such statement and certificates as may be prescribed by the Policy on Fit and Proper Criteria for Directors in line with the NHB / RBI Directions issued by the NHB / RBI for the time being in force.

For the purposes of this Policy, a Director will be deemed to be a 'Fit & Proper' person if they satisfy the following criteria:

- Provide the necessary information and declaration as required by the Company / NRC / Board / Directions.
- The Director shall also provide annually a declaration that the information already provided has not undergone any change and where there is any change, requisite details are furnished by them forthwith to the Company.
- Continue to satisfy the requirements, as well as the spirit and intent, of this Policy.
- Newly nominated/elected Directors shall execute the deeds of covenants as per the format given in the Directions.

Disqualification:

The proposed person for the position of a Director of the Company shall not suffer any of the following disqualifications:

- Proposed director is of unsound mind and stands so declared by a competent court;
- Proposed director is an undischarged insolvent;
- Proposed director has applied to be adjudicated as an insolvent and his application is pending;
- Proposed director has been convicted or found guilty by a court of any offence of a disciplinary or criminal nature, whether involving moral turpitude or otherwise, and sentenced in respect thereof to imprisonment for not less than six months and a period of five years has not elapsed from the date of expiry of the sentence;

Provided that if a person has been convicted of any offence and sentenced in respect thereof to imprisonment for a period of seven years or more, he shall not be eligible to be appointed as a director in any company;

• An order disqualifying him for appointment as a director has been passed by a court or Tribunal and the order is in force;

- Proposed director has not paid any calls in respect of any shares of the company held by him, whether alone or jointly with others, and six months have elapsed from the last day fixed for the payment of the call;
- Proposed director has been convicted of the offence dealing with related party transactions under section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 at any time during the last preceding five years;
- Proposed director has not been allotted a Director Identification Number (DIN);
- Proposed director has not complied with the provisions of sub-section (1) of Section 165 of the Companies Act, 2013;
- Proposed director has been subject to any adverse findings or any settlement in civil proceedings, particularly in connection with banking or other financial business, misconduct, or fraud;
- Proposed director has controlling interest or exercises significant influence, has been investigated and disciplined or suspended by a regulatory or professional body, a court or tribunal, whether publicly or privately.

8. Disclosure to the Board

The following disclosures shall be made to the Board of Directors or the Committee of the Board at regular intervals as may be prescribed by the Board in this regard:

1. conformity with Corporate Governance standards viz. in composition of various Committees, their role and functions, periodicity of the meetings and compliance with coverage and review functions, etc.

9. Rotation of Statutory Auditors/Audit Partner(S)

The Company shall appoint/re-appoint/rotate the firms/partner(s) of the Chartered Accountant firm conducting statutory audit as per the provisions of the NHB / RBI Directions and the Companies Act, 2013.

10. Review of Policy

The Board or its Committee may review the Policy from time to time as may be required. Changes, if any, shall be effective only upon approval by the Board.